University and Educational Intelligence

CAMBRIDGE.—It is proposed that the degree of Sc.D. honoris causa be conferred on Prof. A. Fowler, Yarrow research professor of the Royal Society.

At Clare College, Mr. R. E. Priestley has been appointed to a professorial fellowship.

OXFORD.—Dr. R. W. T. Gunther, Magdalen College, has been appointed University reader in the history of science. The appointment, to which no stipend is attached, is for six years from August 1, 1934. No one in Oxford is better qualified than Dr. Gunther to give instruction in the history of science, especially in its relation with the University. His long series of volumes on "Early Science in Oxford", as well as his smaller treatises on the Daubeny Laboratory and the Botanic Garden, together with his work as curator of the Lewis Evans collection of scientific instruments, are evidence of his power of making available his intimate knowledge of the subject.

The New Commonwealth, the monthly organ of a society for the promotion of international law and order, appeals, in a special educational supplement to its December number, to all engaged in education, to co-operate towards the realisation of its aims. The society stands for the establishment of an international tribunal of wider jurisdiction than the court at The Hague, and for an international police force, and this special supplement has articles by well-known writers on "Teaching Peace", "War and History", etc. Simultaneously there appears in School and Society of December 9 a protest against premature agitations for organising the surrender to an international body of parts of the sovereignty of the modern State. In an address to the Association of Urban Universities by the president of the College of the City of New York on the place of the State in the modern world, it is contended that it will be centuries before humanity is ready for a world commonwealth, and that the best agencies for conserving such communities of interest as exist among nations are the sovereignties joined in treaties and trade agreements.

Science News a Century Ago

Royal Geographical Society

"At the Anniversary Meeting, held on May 12, 1834, Mr. W. R. Hamilton, V.P., in the chair, General the Right Hon. Sir George Murray was re-elected President, and Mr. R. I. Murchison was elected a Vice-President. A report related that the Society had published, during the last year, the third volume of its Journal, in two parts, and a Map of America by Col. Monteith; that the late African and Palestine Associations had dissolved themselves and transferred their funds to the Society; that the Royal Premiums for 1832 and 1833 were assigned to Capt. John Biscoe and Capt. Ross, and that the Council had subscribed 50l. to a projected expedition into the interior of Africa from Delagoa Bay; and to another into the interior of South America-50l. towards outfit, and 50l. a year for three years. It also noticed the formation of a branch society at Bombay. Lieut. Allen, the companion of the late Richard Lander, was present and exhibited a variety of his African sketches. A portrait of Lander, painted by Mr. Brockedon, shortly before his departure, was presented by that gentleman to the Society. The Society have published the first part of Vol. IV of their *Journal*." (*Gentleman's Magazine*, June 1834.)

The first to receive the Royal Premium of fifty guineas (1832) was Richard Lander, for exploring the course of the Niger to the sea; next (1833), John Biscoe, for his circumnavigation of the antarctic continent and the discovery of Enderby Land and Graham Land. Biscoe's voyage was chronicled only in the Society's Journal.

The Padorama

The Times of May 12, 1834, describes an exhibition then on view at the Bazaar, Baker Street, London. "It consists of a continuous view of the railway and the adjacent country through which the line of road passes between Manchester and Liverpool. . . . The whole picture covers a surface of 10,000 sq. ft. of canvas and it is made to move on drums by mechanical power. . . . There is also a foreground detached from the principal painting which foreground is also moveable. . . . Along the railroad a great variety of waggons, carts, etc., attached to steam engines, are at intervals made to pass along. This part of the exhibition was well contrived; the mechanism of the steam engines is accurately represented, and the pigmy passengers by whom the carriages are crowded might easily, so well is the deception of the whole effort preserved, be mistaken for living people of the full size of life."

Coins and Coining

On May 13, 1834, Mr. William Wyon (1795-1857), the chief engraver at the Mint, delivered a lecture before the Society of Arts on "Coins and Medals" in which he gave a sketch of ancient and modern coins, the progress of the art of coining and of modern medals. After referring to the coins of the Greeks and Romans, and to the introduction of the various British coins, he said that one of the most important events in the history of the Mint in London was the introduction of the mill and screw. Previous to the reign of Charles II, money was made by hammering slips of gold and silver to the proper thickness, then cutting the slips into squares, which were afterwards rounded and adjusted to the weight required. After this, the blanks were placed between dies and struck with a hammer. The mill and screw, or coining press, was invented in France, it is supposed by Antoine Brucher in 1553, and was first used in Great Britain during the Commonwealth. At the Mint in 1834, there were eight presses, each press producing sixty pieces a minute. In 1817 the daily production of coins was 343,000, while from January 4, 1817 until December 31, 1833 the sum coined in sovereigns and half-sovereigns was £52,187,265 sterling. One of the problems at the Mint was the selection of the best steel. Fine steel as used by engravers was unfit for the purpose and coarse steel acquired fissures under the die-press. Even the best steel could be spoilt for want of skill on the part of the smith. Casualties to dies were frequent but sometimes a pair of dies would strike three or four hundred thousand pieces. The lecture was reported in full in the Athenœum of May 1834.

Sir Charles Bell on the Brain

On May 15, 1834, Sir Charles Bell read a paper before the Royal Society on the functions of some parts of the brain and on the connexion between the